CLAYTON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
FEBRUARY 25, 2025, 6:00 P.M.
CLAYTON TOWNSHIP HALL
Kevin DePottey Jon Mieczkowski
Corey Potter George Sippert
Rick Caruso ‘ Richard Derby

Kathleen Norris

TED HENRY, ZONING ADMINISTRATOR, #810-691-5258
PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

APPROVE PROPOSED AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: JANUARY 28, 2025 Pgs. 2-3
COMMUNICATION:

REPORT OF OFFICERS AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR:
NEW CELL TOWER

PUBLIC COMMENT:

NEW BUSINESS / DISCUSSIONS
1. Rental Ordinance Pgs, 4-22

OLD BUSINESS / DISCUSSIONS
ADDITIONAL ITEMS

FUTURE ITEMS

1. Business License

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF CLAYTON
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
JANUARY 28, 2025
Chairman DePottey opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Members Present: Rick Caruso, Richard Derby, Jon Mieczkowski, Kevin DePottey, Kathy
Notris, George Sippert, Corey Potter

Members Absent: None

Others Present:

Ted Henry/Building Official, Zoning Administrator
Ken Tucker/Township Attorney

APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA

Action Taken:; Motion by Potter, supported by Mieczkowski, to approve the proposed
agenda for the January 28, 2025, Clayton Township Planning Commission meeting.

MOTION CARRIED.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: December 17, 2024

ACTION TAKEN: Motion by Derby, supported by Potter to approve minutes of December
17, 2024.

MOTION CARRIED.

COMMUNICATION:

None

REPORT OF OFFICERS AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR:

Discussion took place on completing last phase that was started in Cole Creek. A
surveying company is working on site presently fo propose finishing phase out.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Nonhe




NEW BUSINESS/DISCUSSIONS:
Discussion starfed back up on rental ordinance where the Commission left off last
month. The Commission began to talk about developing the Rental Ordinance. The
Commission started with the inspector check list.
OLD BUSINESS/DISCUSSIONS
ADDITIONAL ITEMS
FUTURE ITEMS
1. Business License
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

Action Taken: Motion by Potter, supported by Norris, to adjourn the Planning
Commission meeting at 7:14 p.m.

Kevin DePottey, Chairperson Kathy Norris, Secretary




Bultding Depaitment
810.635.4464
810,635,2887 fax
jray@cityofswartzeraak.org

Whare Friendships Last Forever

Rental Property Address: . Apt#

For multiple units under common ownership, common management, AND located on & common
premises, please Include additional unit information below or attach a list of all units by address and
number for larger complexes,

Bullding Owner's nama:
Owner's address (No PO Boxes):

City: _ State: _ _Zlp:
Telephone number: ( Y o EXT
Cell # ( ) - EMAIL:

Owner's Agent's hame:

Agent's Address:
Agent's telephone number: ). -
Office-humber: ) - Emergency 24-hr, numbar: ( ) -

_Unit 8:

e

Amount Enclosed ($75 for first unit, and $20 for additional qualifying units on premises): §__

it

 In compliance with MCL 125.526 the owner petmits inspections of their rental properties by officials ot agents
of the City and affirms that all tenants of the subject properties have boen informed of the regulations contained
in this article and of inspections of the rental propetties, including common areas; by authorized City officials,
The owner shall notify their tenant of a request by the City to inspect a rental property, and owner shall make a
good-faith effort to obtain consent for an inspection, and if the owner obtalng consent for an inspection, arrange
inspection by City officials or agents. If a tenant refuses an inspection from the City and then vacaies before an
inspection can occur, the owner of the leasehold shall notify the enforeing agency within 10 days afier the
leased property is vacated. o '

Owner or Legal Representative Pate

[String.Juplsdiction, Adédress) (String. Jurlsdiction.City], [Sking.Jurlsdiction,State] [String. Jurk: dictton, 21} -
wiww, Eityorswartzereek.org

Printed on [DateTirme, System, Today: MM/ dd/vyyy 2




Rental Inspection Report

ATE: Titme: _
FENTIFICATION,

__ Inspecton

cota it smas,

roperty Address

tame of Property Owner

roperty Owner Address

Ity/State/ZIp

xterlor: |

02,1 Sariitation. Y/ N /NA -

02.2 Grading and drainage. Y/ N/NA

02.3 Sidewalls and driveways. Y/ N/NA .
1072.4 Weeds., ' Y /N /NA

_[_dZ-."? Access#‘ry structures, Y/ N/NA

j02.8 Motor vehicles, Y/ N/NA

103.1 swimnlng pools, Y/ N/ NA

104.3 pPremises identification Y/ N/NA

104.4 Structural members Y/ N/NA

104.5 Foundation walls | Y/ N/NA

304.6 Exterfor walls . ¥/ N/NA ]

104.7 Roofs and drainage, Y/ N/ NA ' 0 ’
304.10 Stalrways, decks, porehes v/ N/ NA ' o o
304,14 Chimneys and towers Y/ N/NA

304,12 Handralls and guards. Y/ N/ NA

304.13 Window glazfng _ v/ NJNA

‘304,14 Insect screens, Y/ NJNA ,
304.45poors. . MININA _

604.3 Electrical systen hazards. Y/ N/NA

Additional commants:




Bedrooin:

304.18 Window glazing Y/ N/NA
304.14 Insect scréehs. Y/ N/NA B B
305.3_’interior,surfac(:'s. Y/ N/ NA
305.4 Walling surfaces, Y/ N./ NA -
305.6 interlor doots, Y/ N/ NA
308.1 Infestation, Y/ N/ NA
04,3 Electrical system hazards, Y/ N/ NA
764,2 Smoke alarms, | Y/ N./ NA
‘Additional comments: -
Bathroom: -
304,14 Insect screens, Y/ N/ NA
304.13 Window glazing Y/ N / NA
305,3 Interior surfaces, | Y/ N/ NA
305.4 Walking surfaces, Y/ N/NA )
3081 Infestation Y/ N/NA
502 Requ!ted Facilities
«fBath tub-present, - Y/ N/NA
~-Water closetiresent YN/ NA
~Lgvatory present Y/ N/ NA
‘B05 Water systém '
~ leaks Y/ N/ NA
-t water Y/ N/ NA
«-cold water Y/ N/NA
604.3 Electrical system hazards. ¥/ N/NA
Additional comments:
Living Room
304.13 Window glazing YN NATT
304,14 Insect screens. Y/ N/NA
305,38 Interlor surfaces, Y/ N/NA
305.4 Walking surfaces. Y/ N/NA

305.6 Interlor doors,

Y/ N/NA




| 3081 Infestation.

| \"/ N/ NA

604.3 Electrical system hazavds, Y/ N/ NA
Addltional coimments: '
Kitchen: _
304,13 Window glazing Y/ N /NA
304.14 Insect screens, Y/ B/ NA
305.3 Interlor surfaces, Y/ N/ NA
| 305.4 Walking surfaces, Y/ N/ NA
| 305.6 Interior doors, Y/ N/ NA
307.1 Rubblsh or garbage ¥/ N/NA
| 308.1 Infestation. Y/ N/NA
a04.7 ‘Foo_d preparation
« Refrigerator present Y/ N/ NA
502 Requlired Facitities
I - Kitchen sihk present Y/ N/NA
505 Water;;system
- lealks ¥/ NJNA
~hot water Y/ N/ NA
wcold water '
604.3 Electrlcal system hazards. Y/ N/NA
Additional comments:
—¥
Laundry Room
| 304.13 Window glazing Y/ N/NA
304.14 Inséict screens, Y/ N/ NA
305.3 Interlor surfaces. Y/ N/ NA
305.4 Walking surfaces. Y/ N/ NA
17305.6 ntorior doors. Y/ N/NA
308.1 Infestation, Y/ NJNA
403.5 Clothes dryar exhaust, Y/ N/ NA |
Y/ N/NA

604.3 Electrical system hazavds,




Addltional comm_ents:'

Dining Room:

304.13 Window glazlhg . Y/ N/ NA
304,14 Insect screans, R7 N/ NA
305.3 Interior surfaces. Y/ N/NA
305.4 Walking sutfacas. Y/ N/NA
205.6 Interior doors, YN/ NA
308.1 Infestation. Y/ N/ NA
604,3 Flectiical system hazards. Y/ N/ NA
Additional commentst " |
N
Basement
:504/1 Strugtural merabors Y/ N/ NA
304.5 Foundation walls Y/ N/ NA
304,16 Basement hatchways. ¥/ N/ NA
8055 Handralls and guards, DY/ N/NA
305.6 Interlor doors, Y/ N/ NA
307.1 Rubhish or garbage Y/ N/ NA
308.1 infestation. Y/ N /NA
403.5 Clothes dryer exhaust. ¥/ N/ NA
6043 Electrical system hazards, Y/ N / NA
704.2 Smoke alarms. Y/ N/ NA
Addlitional coraments:
Hallway/Stalrway
3053 Interior surfaces, Y/ N/NA
j305...4 Waiklng surfaces. ¥/ N/ NA




305,5 Handralls and guards.

¥/ N/'NA

Additional comments:

3056 Interlor doors, Y/ N/ NA
308.1 Infestation, Y/ N/NA
604.3 Electrical system haiards. V/. N / ZNA
704.2 Smoke alarms, Y/ N / NA
Additlonal comments:

Equipment:

505.4 Water heating facillties. Y/ N/ NA
602.3 Heat supply. Y/ N/NA
603.1 Mechanical appltances. Y/ N/ NA
604.3 Elettrical system hazards. Y/ N/NA

A"

[-a’




CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK
ORDINANGE ‘NO..421

An ordinance fo amend Chapler 4 of the Code of Ordinances to add therelo a new
Articis IV for ingpections of rental properties,

THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS:

Section 1. Amendment of Ghapter 4 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Swartz Creek.

Chapter. 4 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek is hereby
amended to add thereto a new Article 1V entitled "Rental Propetty Inspactions” to read
as follows: ’

ARTICLE IV, RENTAL PROPERTY INSPECTIONS
S8ac. 4-31.  Purpose of standards.

The city recoghizes a compelling interest in establishing standards for the:
maintenance of sanitary and safe resldential rental struciures in the city as -an impditant
fac;‘\tor for the general health, safety and welfare of ali of its cltizens, This article is deslgned
to promote the continued malntenance of quality and safe rental propetties and to enhance
and maintain Property values.

This Hrticle supplements and augments the existing imernational  Property
Maintenance Code in protecting and promoting the health, safety and welfare of the
citizens of the City of Swartz Creek by requiring the registration of all rental dwelling units
in the city, This reglstration, combined with reguiar systematic Inspections, will help prevent
overcrowding, the Incldence of communicable diseases, and will aid in the enforcement
of the International Property Maintenance Code, which sets minimum allowable standards
for adequate maintenance of habitable dwellings. This article: ls not intended nor shall it
be used for the purpose of including the city: in civil disputes?between rental owners and
tenants. involving, but not limited to, non-payment of rent, evictions and/or personaﬂ
disputes,

Suc, 432, Definltions.

"Dwelling unit" means a building, or portion thereof, designed for oceupancy for
living purposes and having cooking facilities and sanitary faciiities, including single family
residences. : ‘

"‘Landlord” means any person who owns ot cohtrols a dﬁéﬂin@ Dv-\_fglmlin'g 'Gifﬂt, or
Rental Unit and rerits such unit, either personally or fhrough a desighated agent, to any
person,

"Owner" means the legal title holder of a Rentai Unit or the Premiggs within which
the Rental Unit is situated. w

"Rental unit" means any Dwelling Unit or a unit containing sleeping quarters,




including but not limited fo hotels, motels, bed and breakfast establishments; boarding
houses, sleeping rooing, residential, commercial or industrial property, including structures
which are leased or rented by the Owner or other Person in control of such units, to
any tenant, whether by day, weak, moiith, year or any other term, except for jails, hospitals,
hursing homes, convalescent homes, foster homes or temporary group shelters provided
by legal nonprofil agencies which aré inspected, certifted and/or ficensed by the state,

Sec. 433, Registration.

An Owner or Landlord shall reglster their Rental Unit' at least ohce every three
years, in accordance with the applicable inspection cydle, as follows:

() Al existing Rental Unlts shall be registered within hinety (90) days of the
effective date of this. ardinance,

() All newly constructed Rental Units shall be registered prior to any use or
occupancy as a rental dwelling unit,

{3) A new Owner or Landlord s!jail register a Rental Unit, which s sold, transferred
or conveyed, within thitty (30} days of the date’ of the closing of such sale,
transfer or conveyance,

.. {4 All existing non-rental dwellihg units, which are converted to Rental Units,
\ shall be registered priof to the date on which the property is first occupied for
~ rental purposes, '

Sev,4-38,  Applications.

Applications for registration shall be made in such form and in accordance with
siich Instructions as may be provided by the building .inspector designated by the city
manager and shall include atieast the following information:

(1) The name, address and telephone number of the Pwner and/or Landiord (no
post office box shall be acoepted).

{2) The name, address and telephonie number of the Owner's representative, if
the rental property owner has opted to appoint a representative. This
representative must be located within 40 miles of the premises.

(3) Upon registration, the Owner shall be responsible for. notifying the building
inspector of any change of address of either the Owner or Owner's
representative,

Included with the registration application shall be an agreement, signed by the

Owner, permitting inspections of his/her rental properties by officials or agents of the city
and affirming that all tenants of the subject properties have been. informed of the
raguiations contained inthis article and of inspections of the rental propeities, including
common areas, by authorized City officials, All leases executed after the effective date

of this article shall contaln a provision requiring the tenant(s} to consentio g h hspgetion
upon notice as provided In this article, %é@

I\




An authorlzed City official may, with wiitten notice, require additional Information
of any or all registrants in order to reasonably further the purposes of this Article.

At the time of registration of the Rental Unit, there will be a presciibed fee for
registration and the’ initial inspection, as adopted by resolution. Any unpaid reglstration
fees shall become a lien on the property immediately and collected as an assessment
pursuantto city ordinance.

Bac, 4-36,  Inspections,

_ The bullding official shall cause a periodic inspection to be inade of every Rental
Unilt at least once every three years, with more frequent Inspections for Rental Units that
are found to have deficiencies, said inspection frequancy to be in accordance with the
" procedural rules adopted by the city council. Such inspection shall Include a thorough
examination of all parts of such Rental Unit and the premises connacted therewlth,

The Owﬁer shall be notified of the date and time of a rental inspection via first class
mail at least 30 days prior to the inspection date. Owners shall be required to provide all
notices of Inspection to the tenant(s) as required by law,

Any Rental Unit, even though not previously scheduled for inspection, may be
inspected without prior notice to the Owner and/or tenant If an authorized city official has:
probable cause to belleve that there exists on the property any condition which makes it
or'any porttion thereof substandard or unsafe, or there is evidence that a violation of a
cq‘gie may exist,

_ Ifaccess to a structure, premises or area for the purpose of inspection authorized
by this section Is refused, an authorized city official, upon showing that probable cause
exists for the inspection and for the issuance of an order directing compliance with the
inspection requirements of this article with respect to such rental dwelling or rental unit,
may petition and obtain such order from a court which has jurisdiction,

Exceptfor probable cause inspections, a Rental Unitmay only be Inspected during
reagonable hours upon presentation of proper identification iy an authorized city officlal.

Sec, 4+36, Standards.

The standards used to determine Rental Unit and Dwelling Unit compliance with
city codes and ordinances shall be the International Property Mainienance Code, as
adopted and amended by the city council.

The building officlal is hereby empowersd to make such rules and regulations as
shall be necessary for the enforcement of this articls, subject, however, to the approval

of the city council, When the rules and regulations niade under this article have been
adopted and promulgated by the building official and approved by the city counci, they
shall be deemed to be as complete and binding a part of the article as if such rules were
spacifically set forth in this article. The violation of any of such regulations so adopted
shall be deemed a violation of this article. Coples of such rules and regulations shall be

placed on file in the office of the city clerk for inspection by interested parties at anyj
reasonabletime. e / _

Sac, 4-37. Noncompliance with code.




. Violations notimminently dangerous, Upon inspection by an authorized city official,
if & violation of & code. Is-discovered, but the violation Is deemed by the officlal not to be
immediately dangerous to health, welfare or safety, a violation notice shall be-issued to
the owner, The owner shall be advised of the time period to.correct the violation.

Violations that threaten life, limb or property. W upon inspection of a tental property
the authorized city official determines that a violation is-of such serious nature so as to
immediately threaten the health, safety or welfare ofthe public or the ocetipants thereof,
the officlal shall demand that the violation(s) be corrected immediately and/or the Tental
properly be vacated immediately. '

Sac. 4-38. Notices,

The building inspector shall issue a wittten report in accordance with Sectlon 107
of the Internationa! Propetly Maintenance Code, noting any violations of this article or any
other provision of the city's ordinances and shall provide a copy of the report to-the owner
or owner's tepresantative,

The Dbuilding Inspector shall direct the owner or owner's representative. fo correct

~ violations within the time set forth In the repoit. A reasonable time for coirecling violations

shall be determined by the building Inspectot i light of the nature of the violations and all
relevant clroumstances, which shall not exceed sixty (80) days, unless correction of the
violation within a 60-day period Is impossible due to seasonal considerations.

_ Upon request of the person responsible for correcting violations, the building
inspector may extend the time for correcting violations, but not to excead an additional
thirty (30) days.

Re-inspections of a rental property shall accur on the date specified on the violation
notice, or sooner if requested by the owner and clty scheduling permits such inspection,
it shall be the owner's responsibllity to coordinate the access to all areas of their rental
properties. A fee as established by resolution of the City Geuncil shall be charged for
each re-inspection after the first re-inspection. < '

Sec. 439, Violations.

A violation of any provision of this ordinance shall be punished as-a municipal clvil
infraction, subject to fines and costs identified In Section 1-21 of Artlcle !l of the Cily of
Swartz Creek Code of Ordinances, .

__Any structure not in compliance with this arlicle is deemed a nulsance per se.

The bullding Inspector, bullding official, code enforcement officer and any other
person designated hy the city manager is hereby deslynated as the authorized indivitiual

to Issue munlcipal civil infraction citations or pursue any other lawful remedy for viclations
of this Article,

in addition to any penalties imposed by law, upon a finding of resmns_ibiiity by the '
court for a violation of this Article, the City may Immediately revoke the registration and
ordar the Immediate eviction of all persons and property upon the premises until a




certificate: of compliance is issued by the cily.

Sed, 440, Fees, _ .

The Clty shall, by resolution, establish the fees for registration and Inspections of
Rental Units and the Cly Clerk shall make the fee schedule available to the publio during
regular office hours, Any. unpald Inspection fees shall become 4 lien on the property and
collected as delinquent properly taxes as allowed by law..

Sec. 441,  Appeals.

Any person aggrieved by an order or decision of any official charged with the
enforcement of this Article. may ‘appeal that order or decision 1o the city councii provided
that appeal is taken no later than twenty (20) days from the date of the order ‘of decision
baing appealed. The appellant shall file with the officlal from whose -dacision such appeal
is taken and with the clty clerk, a notice of appeal specifying the .ground therefor. The
officlal from whom the appeal is taken shall forthwith transmit to the ity clerk. a summary
report of all previous action taken. The clty council may at its discretlon. call upon the
official from whom the appeal is taken, to explain his/her action. The final disposition of
such appeal shall be In the form of a resolution either reversing, modifylng or .affirm'lng,
wholly o partly, the decision or the determination appealed from. To this end, the clty
council shall have all the powers of the. official from whom the appeal is taken,

‘se\c 442, Hearings.

The olty council acting as the board of appeals shall fix a reasonable time for the
hearing of thd. appeal and give due notice thereof to Interested parties and decide the
same within a reasonable time.

Bec, 443, QCost,

The cost of the demolition, making the building safe, or of maintaining the exterior
of the buliding of structure or grounds adjoining the building or structure, lincurred by the
city to bring the propeity Into compliance with this article shall be relmbursed o the city
hy the owner or party in Interest in whose name the property appears. !

Sec. 444,  Lien,

The owner or party In Interest In whose name the property appears upon the last
local tax assessment records shall be notified by the assessor of the amount of the costs
of the demolition, making the building safe, of of maintaining the ‘exterior of the bullding,
structure or grounds adjoining the butiding or structure by first class mail at the address

~shown on the records. Ifthe owner or parly in Interest fails to pay the costs within 30.days

after malling by {he assessor of the notice of the amount of the cost to the city, the city
shall have a llen for the cost Incurred fo bring the property into sonformance with this
article. The lien for the cost shall be collscled and treated in the same manner as provided
for property tax fiens under the general property tax act, Act No, 206 of the Public Acts of

Michigan of 1893 (MCL 211.1 et seq.), as amended. rva% e’
Sac, 4-45,  Separate legal action; judgment.

iy




In addition to other remadies under this article; the city may biing an action against
the owner of the building or structure for the full cost of the demolition, of making the .
building safe, or of maintaining the exterior of the building or structure or grounds adjoining
the bullding or structure, The city shall have a llen on the property for the amount of a
judgment obtained pursuant to this section, The lien provided for in this section shall not
{ake-effect until notice of the Hen is filed orrecorded as provided by law.

Seclion 2. Effective Date,

This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days following publication,
At a regular meeting of the City Council of Swartz Creék held oh the 13th day of July,
2015, Councllmember Gilbert moved for adoption of the foregoing ordinance and
Councilmember Shumaker supporfad the motion. ‘
Voting for;  Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gllbert, Hicks, Kiueger, Pinkston,
Voting agrinst: Norne.

| The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted.

A
%

Ya

David Krueger
Mayor

,'.I

thahit,a Aguilar
City Cletk
CERTIFICATION

The foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No, 421 which was shacted by the Swartz
Greek Cily Counclt at a regular meeting held on the 13th day of July, 2015.

J uanita Aguilar"
_City Clerk

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED th’at-thé following forms, as included in the July 13,
2015 clty councll packet, shall be hereby incorporated Into the rental inspection

Ta%e 15




\'\

program of the Clty of Swarlz Creek, with future fees subject to resolution by the
¢ity council: .

Rental Reglstration & Inspection Prosedural Rules & Policies
Oceupant Information Form. ‘

Rental Registration Form

Rental Inspection Certificate of Compllance

Rental Inspection Report

Rental: Registration Letter

Flowchart of Rental Registration Process

YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger; Pinkston,
NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

/'-J‘




ARTICLE IV, - RENTAL PROPERTY INSPECTIONS

Fooinotes::

- (3) -
Editor's note— Qid. No. 421, § 1, adopted July 13, 2015, set out provisions adding Art, 1Y, §§ 4-91—4-45, To preserve the

oxisling §§ 4-31—4-33 (Art. 1il), and at the editor's discretion, said provisions have beén Included herefp as At IV, §§ 4-41—4-
b5,

Sec. 4-41. - Purpose of standards.

The clty recognizes a compelling interest in establishing standards for the maintenance of sanitary and safe
residential rental structures in the city as an important factor for the general health, safety and welfare-of all
of its citizens. This article is deslgned to promote the continued maintenance of quality and safe rental

properties and to enhance and maintain property values. ,

This article supplements and augments the existing International Property Maintenance Code in protecting
and promoting the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Swartz Creek by requiring the
reglstration of all rental dwelling units in the city, This reglstration, combined with regular sy_;,tematic

.inspections, wilt help prevent overcrowding, the incidence of communicable diseases, and will ald in the
enforcement of the International Property Maintenance Code, which sets minimum allowable standards for
adequate maintenance of habitable dwellings, This article is not intended nor shall it be used for the purpose

~of including the city in civil disputes between rental owners and tenants involving, but not.limited 1o, non-

payment of rent,"evictions and/or personal disputes.'

in accordance with MCL 125.526(4)(d), inspections shall be conducted on a compliance basis, under which a
premises brought into compliance with this section will be issued a certificate of compliance that is good for a
perlod of three years, unless a complaint is made to the City of Swartz Creek building inspector,

(Ord. No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15; Ord. No. 450, § 1, 9-14-20}) y

Sec, 4-42, - Definitions,

Dwelling unit means a building, or portion thereof, designed for occupancy for living purposes and having
cooking facilities and sanitary facilities, Including single family residences,

Landlord means any person who owns or controls a dwelling, dwelling unit, or rental unit and rents such
unlt either personaliy or through a des[gnated agent to any person.

Owner means the Iegal title holder of a rental unit or the premises within whfch the rental unit is situated

Rental unit means any dwelling unit or a unit containing sleeping quarters, including but not limited to
hotels, motels, bed and breakfast establishments, boarding houses, sleeping rooms, residential, commercial
or industrial property, including structures which are leased or rented by the owner or other person in control

ahout:biank E E’ ll[":Z]tl 7120 PM

Page 16f &




of such units, to any tenant, whether by day, week, month, year or any other term, except for jails, hospltals,
nursing homes, convalescent homes, foster homes or temporary group shelters provided by legal nonprofit
agencies which are inspected, certified and/or licensed by the state,

(Qrd. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-43, - Registration.

An owner or landlord shall register their rental Unit at ieast once every three years, in accordance with the
applicable inspection cycle, as follows:

(1) Alf existing rental units shall be registered within 90 days of the effective date of the ordinance
from which this article derived.

(2) All newly constructed rental units shall be registered prior to any use or occupancy as a rental
dwelling unit. )

(3} Anew owner or landlord shall register a rental unit, which Is sold, transferred or conveyed,
Wi'thln 30 days of the date of the:closing of such sale, transfer or conveyance,

(4) All existing non-rental dwelling units, which are converted to rental units, shall be registered
prior to the date on which the property [s first occupled for rental purposes,

(Qrd, No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

v

%
Sec, 4-42&. - Applications,

Appii_cati'ons f()?r‘-registration_ shall be made in such form and in accordance with such instructions as may
be provided by the building inspector designated by the city manager arid shail include at least the following

information:

(1) The name, address and telephone number of the owner and/or landlord {no past office box
shall be accepted),

(2) The name, address and telephone number of the owne_rgs- representatlve, If the rental property.
owner has opted to appoint a representative, This representative must be located within 40
miles of the premises.

(3) Upon registration, the owner shall be responsible for notifying the bullding inspector of any
change of address of elther-the owner or owner's representative,

Included with the registration application shall be an agreement, signed by the owner, permitting
inspections of his/her rental properties by officlals or agents of the city and affirming that all tenants of the

subject properties have been informed of the regulations contained in this article and of Inspections of the
rental properties, including common areas, by authorized city officlals. All leases executed after the effective
date of this article shall contain a provision requiring the tenant(s) to consent to such inspection upon notice

as provided In this article, - mq 'g

abaubiblank 10422424, 7:20 P
‘Pags 2 of 4§




An authorized city official may, with written notice, require additional information of any or all registrants
in order to reasonably further the purposes of this article,

At the time of reglstration of the rental unit, there will be a prescribed fee for registration and the Initlal
inspection, as adopted by resolution. Any unpald reglstration fees shall become a lien on the-property
immediately and collected as an assessment pursuant to city ordinance.

(Ord. No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec. 4-45, - Inspections,

The building official shall cause a periodic inspection to be made of every rental unit at least once every
three years, Such inspection shall include a thorough examination of all parts of such rental unit and the

premises connected therewith,

The owner shall be notified of the date and time of a rental inspection:via first class mail at least 30 days
prior to the inspection date. Owners shall be required to provide all notices of inspection to the tenant(s) as
required by law.

Any rental unit, even though not previously scheduled for inspection, may be inspected with prior notice to
_the owner and/or tenant if an authorized city official has probable cause to belleve that there. exlsts on the.
property any condition which makes it or any portion thereof substandard or unsafe, or there Is evidence that

a violation of a code may exist.

If access to a gt‘ructure, premises or area for the purpose of inspection authorized by this section is
refused, an auth;ﬂ‘ized city officlal, upon showing that probable cause exists for the inspection and for the
Issuance of an order directing compliance with the inspection require'r}iehts of thisarticle with respect to such
rental dwelling or rental unit, may petition and obtain such order from a court which has jurisdiction.

Except for probable cause Inspections, a rental unit may only be inspected during reasonable hours and
upon presentation of proper identification by.an authorized city offici'a!.

3

No notice of Inspection requirement exists to the owner/tenant of the rental unit if an emergency exists,
including but not limited to, fire, flood, or other threat of serious injury or death, the owner may enter at any

time,

(Ord. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15; Ord. No. 450, § 1, 9-14-20)

Sec, 4-46, - Standards.

(a) The standards used to determine rental unit and dwelling unit compllance with city“éodes ahd
ordinances shall be the International Property Maintenance Code, as adopted and amended by the.
city council,

(b} The building officlal is hereby empowered to make such rutes and regulations as shall. be necessary

for the enforcement of this article, subject, however, to the approval of the clt,vcouncil When the

Z].. 7: 280\

about:blank
Page 30 ﬁ




rules and regulations made under this article have been adopted and promulgated by the building
official and approved by the city council, they shall be deemed to bé as complete and binding a part
of the article as if such rules were specifically set forth In this article, The violation of any of such
regulations so adopted shall be deemed a violation of this article, Coples of such rules and
regulations shall be placed on file’in the office of the city clerk for inspection by interested partles
at any reasonable time. :

(Qrd.No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-47. - Noncompllance with code,

(a) Violations not imminently dangerous. Upon Inspection by an authorized city official, if a violation of
a code Is discovered, but the violation Is deemed by the official not to be immediately dangerous to
health, welfare or safety, a violation notlce‘s'haH be Issued to the owner, The owner shall be advised
of the time period to correct the violation,

(b) Violations that threaten life, limb or property. |f upon inspection of arental property the authorized
wcity official determines that a violation is of such serious'hathre 50 as to immediately threaten the
health, safety or welfare of the publicor the occupants thereaf, the official shall demand that the
violation(s) be corrected Immediately and/or the rental property be vacated immediately.

Qrd, No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

\\
Sec, 4-48. - Notices.

.{a) The bu@ldlng inspector shall issue a written report in accordance with section 107 of the
International Property Maintenance Code, noting any vielations of this article or any other provision
of the city's ordinances and shall provide a copy of the repoert to the owner or owner's
representative,

(b) The building Inspector shall direct-the owner or owner's-r'epresentative-to correctviolations within
the time set forth in the report.-A reasonable time for corregting violatlons shall be determlned by
the building Inspector In light of the nature of the violations-and all relevant circumstances, "which
shall not exceed 60 days, unless correction of the violation within a 60-day perlod is impossible due
to seasonal considerations.

(c) Upon request of the person responsible for correcting violations, the building inspector may extend
the time for correcting violations, but not to exceed an additional 30 days.

(d) Re-inspections of a rental property shali occur on the date specified on the violatior notice, or

__seonerIfirequested-by the-owner and-city-scheduling-permits-such-inspection.-It-shall-bethe
owner's responsibility to coordinate the access to ali areas of their rental properties. A fee as
established by resolution of the city councll shall be charged for each re-inspection after the flrst re-

inspection.

(Ord, No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15) ‘ Qa% go

102224, 720 PM

aboul:blank
Page dof 6




Sec, 4-49, - Vjolations,

(a) Aviolation of any provision of this article shall be punished as a municipal civil Infraction, subject to
fines and costs identified in section 1-21 of article I! of the City of Swartz CreekCode of Ordinances.

-

(b} Any structure not in compliance with this article is deemed a nulsance per se.

(c) The building inspector, bullding official, code enforcement officer and any othér person designated
by the city manager is hereby designated as the authorized individual to Issue municipal civil
infraction citations or pursueany other lawful remedy for violations of this article.

(d) In addition to any penalttes imposed by law, upon a finding of responsibllity by the court for a
violation of this article, the city may immediately revoke the registration and order the immediate
eviction of all persons and property upon the preiises.until a certificate of compliance is issued by
the city.’«

(Ord. No. 421, 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-50, - Fees.

The ¢ity shall, by resolution, establish the fees for re-gistrati'on and inspections of rental units and the city
. clerk shall make the fee schedule available to the public during regular office hours. Any unpaicl”insp,ectioh
fees shall become a lien on the property and collected as delinguent property taxes as allowed by law,

\I
(Ord, No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

-

Sec, 4-61. - Appeals.

Any person aggrieved by an order or decision of any official charged with the enforcement of this article
may appeal that order or deciston to the city council provided that appeal is taken no later than 20 days-from
the date of the order or decision being appealed. The appellant shall file with the official from whose decision
such appeal Is taken and with the city clerk, a notlce of appeal specifyjng the ground therefor, The official from
whom the appeal is taken shall forthwith transmit to the ity clerk a summary report of all previous action
taken. The clty council may at its discretion call upon the official from whom the appeal is taken, to explain
his/her action. The final disposition of such appeat shall be in the form of a resolution elther reversing,
modifying or affirming, wholly or partly, the decision or the determination appealed from. To this end, the city
councit shall have all the powers of the official from whom the appeal is taken..

(Ord, No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-52. - Hearings.

The city council acting as the board of appeals shall fix a reasonable time-for the hearing of the appeal and
give due notice thereof to interested parties and decide the same within a reasonable time.

i g O 10/22/24, 720 PM

Page § o 6

about:blanl




(Ord. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-53, - Cost,

The cost of the demolitior, making the bullding safe, or of maintaining the exterior of the building or
structure or grounds adjoining the building or structure, incurred by the city to bring the property into
compliance with this article shall be reimbursed to the city by the owner or party in interest in.whose hame
the property appears.

{Ord. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec. 4-54, - Lien,

The owner or party In Interest in whose name the property appears upon the last local tax assessment
records shall e notifled by the assessor of the amount. of the ctosts of the demolition, making th building
safe, or of malntaining the exterior of the building, striicture or grounds adjoining the bullding or structure by
first class mall at the address shown on the records. If the owner or party in interest fails to pay the costs
within 30 days after mailing by the assessor of the notice of the amount of the cost to the city, the city shall
have a lien for the costincurred to bring the property into conformance with this article, The tien for the cost
shall be collected and treated in the same manner as provided for property tax llens under the General
Property Tax Act, Act-No. 206 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1893 (MCL 211.1 ek seq.), as 'amer?ded.

Y
(Ord. No. 421, 5 1, 7-13-15)

-

.
Sec. 4-55, - Separate legal action; judgment.

In addition to other remedies undet this article, the city may bring an action against the owner of the
building or structure for the full cast of the demolition, of maklng the bullding safe, or-of maintaining the
exterior of the building or structure or grounds adjoining the building or structure. The city shall have a lien
on the property for the amount of a judgment obtained pursuant to thjs section, The lien provided for in this
section shall not take effect until notice of the lien is filed or recorded as provided by law. ‘

(Ord. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Secs, 4-56-=4-60, - Reserved,

about:blank 10/2224, 7. 20 PM
. Page 6 66




